
 
 

     Operations Memorandum 

 
To:   New Haven Board of Education Finance and Operations Committee 
From:   Chief Operating Officer Office  
Date:   December 8, 2020  
Re:   Award of Contract with NPower    
 

Contractor Name:  NPower Construction & Electric, LLC 

Contractor Address:  64 Thompson St, Unit B206, East Haven, CT 06513 

Is the contractor a Minority or Women Owned Small Business? N/A 

Renewal or Award of Contract/Agreement? Award of Contract 

Total Amount of Contract/Agreement and the Hourly or Service Rate: $852,369.16 

Contract or Agreement #: 
 
 

Funding Source & Account #:   Capital Projects - 3C202074-58101/On-bill financing 
 
NOTE: Although NPower Construction will be the contractor doing the installation, the 
underlying agreements are with United Illuminating (UI). There are a total of six agreements, 
one for each school, and the cost of the project will be funded through on-bill financing 
through UI. 
 
Key Questions: (Please have someone ready to discuss the details of each question during the 
Finance & Operations meeting or this proposal might not be advanced for consideration by the 
full Board of Education): 
 
1. What specific service will the contractor provide: 

Install new LED Lighting as outlined in RFP bid documents. The six schools are 
Wilbur Cross, Wexler Grant, Mauro Sheriden, Edgewood, Co-op & Fair Haven. 
 

2. How was the contractor selected? Quotes? RFP? Sealed Bid or Sole Source? Please 
describe the selection process including other sources considered and the rationale for 
selecting this method of selection: RFP 2020-07-1336, the rationale for the selection 
process was the overall proposal, cost, feasibility, and experience-providing service.  

 
3. If this is a renewal with a current vendor, has the vendor’s performance been 

satisfactory under the existing contract or agreement? N/A 
 

4. If this Contract/Agreement is a Renewal has cost increased? If yes, by how much?  



 
 
 

5. If this Contractor is New has cost for service increased from previous years? If yes, by 
how much? New Service not an ongoing project.  

 

 

6. Is this a service existing staff could provide? Why or why not?  

No the company selected via the RFP process, and was selected based on specific criteria.  
 



City of New Haven
Request for Agreement

RFAID #: 20201015.BOE.18

Section 1 - Date & Department Information

Department Name: Board of Education Request Date: October 15, 2020

Section 2 - City Contact Information

Requested By: Salina Manning

Email:
salina.manning@new-
haven.k12.ct.us

Phone: +1 475-220-1590

Responsible Party: Michael J. Pinto

Section 3 - Agreement Type

Agreement Type: Professional Service

Section 4 - Purpose

Purpose of Agreement: Install new LED Lighting as outlined in RFP bid documents. The six schools are
Wilbur Cross, Wexler Grant, Mauro Sheriden, Edgewood, Co-op & Fair Haven.

Section 5 - Type of Purchase

Bureau of Purchases - 5A

Section 5A - Bureau of Purchases

Purchasing Method: Request for Proposal

RFP Number: 2020-07-1336

MUNIS Revenue Account Number: 

Section 6 - Scope of Services

Insurance Necessary?: Yes

Section 7 - Vendor Information

Vendor
Number Vendor Name DBA Address Contact

Person
Contact
Person's

Email

Contact
Person's

Phone
Number

54016 JOHN RIGA
NPOWER

CONSTRUCTION
& ELECTRIC LLC

64 THOMPSON ST UNIT
B206 ,  EAST HAVEN, 

%%F12%% 06513   
CT 06513

Do you need a different mailing address? No

Notes: 

Section 8 - Maximum Compensation

Maximum Compensation Total Amount: 852,369.16
Does Hourly Rate Apply?: No

Section 9 - Compensation



Method of Compensation: Method of Compensation
Payment Method: Check 
Payment Frequency: Monthly 

Section 10 - Term of Agreement

Term of Agreement Start Date: November 01, 2020
Term of Agreement End Date: January 15, 2021

Section 11 - Source of Funds

Amount Remaining to be Applied: 0

Fund Number Fund Routing Amount

58101 3C202074-58101 Accounts Payable $852,369.16

Must be Reviewed By: Accounts Payable

Activity Log

Action Log: 

Section 12 - Vendor Affidavit (Form 1421)

Affidavit Date: August 21, 2020

Section 14 - Department Head's Office Authorization

Authorization:I have reviewed with my coordinator all information relevant to this request and we believe
it is accurate and complete as stated

Signature:  
Michael J. Pinto - Date Signed: 15-Oct-2020 17:10 EDT

Section 15 - Assessor's Authorization

Authorization: I have reviewed all information relevant to this request and believe it is accurate and
complete as stated.

Signature:  
Michael Condon - Date Signed: 16-Oct-2020 09:11 EDT

Section 16 - Tax Collector's Authorization

Authorization: I have reviewed all information relevant to this request and believe it is accurate and
complete as stated.

Signature:  
Maurine Villiani - Date Signed: 19-Oct-2020 13:39 EDT

Section 18 - Reviewed by Purchasing Department

Authorization: I have reviewed all information relevant to this request and believe it is accurate and
complete as stated.

Signature:  
Michael Fumiatti - Date Signed: 21-Oct-2020 10:50 EDT

Section 21 - Reviewed by Accounts Payable

Authorization: I have reviewed all information relevant to this request and believe it is accurate and
complete as stated.



Signature: 
CAPO #: 93753112
Arami Martinez - Date Signed: 21-Oct-2020 13:04 EDT

Section 22 - Controller Authorization

Authorization: I have reviewed all information relevant to this request and believe it is accurate and
complete as stated.

Signature:  
Michael Fumiatti - Date Signed: 21-Oct-2020 14:00 EDT







 

Please complete this form it its entirety: Forward the contract award to Purchasing or attach this form to the RFA.  

 Save the file for example as: CAS-21451-2-2 On Call HVAC       Do not enter a requisition for this award.  

 

City of New Haven 
Department of Finance 

Contract/Agreement Award & Synopsis 

Date: October 9, 2020 
Contract 

Synopsis/Purpose: 
Please provide a 

detailed description of 
the scope of work and 

the purpose for this 
contract/agreement 

 
Install new LED Lighting as outlined in RFP bid documents. The six schools are 
Wilbur Cross, Wexler Grant, Mauro Sheriden, Edgewood, Co-op & Fair Haven.  
 

Contract Name: LED Lighting Project for Six Schools 
Contract / RFP / CPO 

No: 
RFP 2020-07-1336 Corporation Counsel No. 

(Corporation Counsel use only) 
 

City Department: BOE Facilties Department Department Head: John Barbarotta 
Department Contact:  John Barbarotta Telephone: 475-220-1644 

 
Fund:  ☐General     ☐Grant     ☒Capital     ☐Special    ☐Enterprise 

Grant or Capital Source 
Description (i.e. Grant 

Name): 

Capital Funding 

Account No: 3C202074-58101 
Amount of Contract: $852,369.16 

Contract Term: Start Date:  November 1, 2020 End Date: January 15, 2021 
 

Vendor Code: 54016 Bill to: X Ship to: X 
Contractor’s Name: N Power Construction & Electrical, LLC 

Contractor Email: JRiga@npowercnelect.com REQUIRED 
Contractor Contact: John Riga 

Address: 64 Thompson St, B206 
City, State, ZIP:     East Haven, CT 06513 

Telephone: 203-494-5206 
Vendor Questions:  Has this vendor performed the service(s) in prior fiscal years?     ☐Yes     ☒No  



Contract # :
Contract Name: LED LIGHTING PROJECT 

FOR SIX SCHOOLS
Contract Period: July 1, 2020-June 30, 2021

Contractor: N Power Construction & 
Electrical , LLC

Amount: 852,369.16$                          

Item # Description Est Qty Unit of 
Measure

Unit Price Model 
Brand

Total Price

Wilbur Cross
918344 
Material Cost
 1 Lump Sum 116,959.55$     116,959.55$         
918345 
Labor Cost
 1 Lump Sum 145,000.00$     145,000.00$         
918346 
Other Costs (list)
 1 Lump Sum 12,345.00$       12,345.00$           

Wexler Grant
918355 
Material Cost
 1 Lump Sum 47,412.21$       47,412.21$           
918356 
Labor Cost
 1 Lump Sum 41,000.00$       41,000.00$           
918357 
Other Costs (list)
 1 Lump Sum 3,925.00$         3,925.00$             

Mauro Sheridan
918366 
Material Cost
 1 Lump Sum 8,356.46$         8,356.46$             
918367 
Labor Cost
 1 Lump Sum 4,000.00$         4,000.00$             
918368 
Other Costs (list)
 1 Lump Sum 600.00$            600.00$                

Edgewood
918377 
Material Cost
 1 Lump Sum 4,482.96$         4,482.96$             
918378 
Labor Cost
 1 Lump Sum 2,800.00$         2,800.00$             
918379 
Other Costs (list)
 1 Lump Sum -$                  -$                      

COOP
918388 
Material Cost
 1 Lump Sum 83,888.23$       83,888.23$           
918389 
Labor Cost
 1 Lump Sum 81,000.00$       81,000.00$           
918390 
Other Costs (list)
 1 Lump Sum 6,191.00$         6,191.00$             

Fairhaven
918410 
Material Cost
 1 Lump Sum 147,313.75$     147,313.75$         
918411 
Labor Cost
 1 Lump Sum 133,495.00$     133,495.00$         
918412 
Other Costs (list)
 1 Lump Sum 13,600.00$       13,600.00$           

852,369.16$         

Statement of Award (SOA)



 
 
 

10/14/2020 16:29    |CITY OF NEW HAVEN-Live |P      1
1241lper            |PURCHASE ORDER CURRENT LIST |pomaintn

 
 

**CHANGE ORDER**
Purchase Order Type: Normal Fiscal Yr/Per 2021/04 PO# 93753112

Batch LP1 PO Date 10/14/2020
Requisition 0000000 
Department Code 902 CONTRACT RESERVE
Allocation Code 00000000 
Buyer ID 1241lper Luz Perez
Needed By Date           
General Commodity
Vendor 054016 NPOWER CONSTRUCTION & ELECTRIC LLC

64 THOMPSON ST UNIT B206
EAST HAVEN, CT 06513

Ship To Address 895 OPERATION OF PLANT MAINT. DEPT
EDUCATION (203) 691-3903
375 QUINNIPIAC AVE
NEW HAVEN, CT 06513

Ship To Reference
Shipping Method
Bill To Address 895 OPERATION OF PLANT MAINT. DEPT

EDUCATION (203) 691-3903
375 QUINNIPIAC AVE
NEW HAVEN, CT 06513

PO Description RFP 2020-07-1336 Install new LED Lighting as outli
Special Handling None Status Posted Distribution 1

 
Total PO Amount    $852,369.16

Liquidated         $ 0.00
Open Encumbrance    $852,369.16

 
 
 

Line Item Details__________________________________________________________________________________________
Line 001 Commodity

Req         Qty       1.00 UOM EACH Unit Price    852,369.16000
%Disc   0.00 Credit         0.00 Freight         0.00 Sales Tax         0.00____________________________________________________________________________

Line Item Total    $852,369.16
Qty Received       0.00 Liquidated         $ 0.00
Qty Canceled       0.00 Canceled         $ 0.00

Line Item Open Encumbrance    $852,369.16____________________________________________________________________________
Description

 RFP 2020-07-1336 Install new LED Lighting 
as outlined in RFP bid documents. The six 
schools are Wilbur Cross, Wexler Grant, 
Mauro Sheriden, Edgewood, Co-op & Fair 
Haven._______________________________________________________________________

Department 902 1099 Box 7 Capital AssetY Needed By           
Quote Bid
Work Order: Task:_______________________________________________________________________
Allocation Details

Org Obj Proj Description Encumbered Amt Bud___________________________________________________________________



 
 
 

10/14/2020 16:29    |CITY OF NEW HAVEN-Live |P      2
1241lper            |PURCHASE ORDER CURRENT LIST |pomaintn

 
 

3C202074 58101 5YR REMODELING/RENOVAT    $852,369.16 U
Liquidated         $ 0.00
Canceled         $ 0.00

Allocated Open Encumbrance    $852,369.16___________________________________________________________________________
 
 

                  ** END OF REPORT - Generated by Luz Perez **                  
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